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CHAPTER I

THE PROBLEM



CTAPTER I
THE PROBLEM

The purpose of this thesis 1s to show the devolope
ment of edueation in Glouscester County from 1652 through 1930,
The author wes actuated by a desire to make the history of
education in Gloucester County accessible tc; those who are
- interosted in its development and to pr'esexvva 8 record for
future reference if the need for such should éver arisc. As

the countles of Tidewater Virg;inia are similar in their social,
politieal, and economie conditioms, it is but natural to believe
that thelr educatlional conditions wouldl be similar; therefore,
the Listory of the development of edueation in Gloucester

should throw some light on the developmont of educatlon in

other tidewater counties.

As it 13 Impossible to describe in detail the whole
history of education in Glouesster, an effort wvas wade to
solect the most interesting details and to eleborate on these
in such o way thet a general idoa of the prevailing educational
conditions would be grasped by the reader. Whonever possible,
graphs and tables ereo used to give the reader o completo picture
of the dovelo.ment of cortain phases dealing vith educabtion.

While proparing this thesis, tho méiter, whenovoy
possrble, used prirary source matorlals; such as iening, Statutes

at lorge, Tho Aets of the Cenersl Assombly, parish records,




bulletins, and documents issued by the State Board of Educa=
tion., He made an earnest attempt to avold personsl interprota-
tions on the ons hand, yet to unravel the misty and incoherent
records of the past, on the other, in such a way that the

content might be of intercst to the reader,
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CHAPTER IX

ECONOMIG AND GEOGRAPHXC CHARACTERISTICS
oF
GLOUCESTER COUNTY

When one attempts to show the evolutlon of education
in & colonial county he must consider the ecomomic and social
conditions of that parfleunlser area, as these always aﬁ‘eet
sducation in its development. The majority of the people in
Gloucester County have always believed in education, A boy,
whether he desired to or not, was usually sent to a private
tutor, an ¢ld fleld school, or an academy, for his training.

His mother's knee was hls Sunday achocl, while his fatherts:
1lips were his code of honor, He rejoiced in talking up his
father's ways and preserving them. The Gloucester girls lived
an independent 1ife. Their malds looked after their every neod,
end all that was left for them to do was to make themselves
charming., Thess glrls often attended delightful parties where
gaiety prevailed. The Gloucester people, like other Virginisns,
knew no 1imit to their h&ap:(tality. Visitors were entertalned
with royal fox hunts, parties, weddings, and splendid dinners,
If they dosired to spend their leisure time in seclusion, they



wounld £ind good private libraries consisting of a broad solloc-
tion of books,t

In the year 1652 the vast territory of York County
wns divided, and that psrt north of the York Hiver was formed
$nto a new county called (lousestor, aftor lenry, Duke of
_ Glousoster, third som of Charles 1.2 fhe newly formed county
» hed four parishes: Abingdon, Ware, Peteworth, and Kingotone
As Gloucoster was stristly an agricwlitural county, thoro wore
no largs villeges in this ssetions As early os 1667 tho Iritish
budlt a fort on the York River for the purpose of protecting
the people in Glousester from unfricndly water-crafts. Soveral
pecple setilod arcund this fa;ﬂ; and called tho place Slomcostors
tomune, uhich nover grew boyond the size of s villege. During .
the Revolutionary War, Tarloton scouwpisd tho place and desiroy=
a8 the few bnnd.‘mga that m standing. %ho plsce was nover
re‘lmﬂtmtﬂtfnma@@ma srall nurber of howmos wns
constructed, This $s known today as Gloucester Point.

The fm‘*mty seat ot Glouceater wnn located nowmy
the Llmington farm on the prosent road that leads to Hathews
Court liouse, 7The county seat wms roved to ite present locow
tion In 1760, and & court houso sas bullt. The village wus
laid out a8 & town and namod ﬂmwmt“ in honor of Lovd
Bototourt, who wos tmm Royal Covernor of Virginia. Lator the

1. Robina, Sally Nolson Iﬁsw of Gloucestopr Coun
2. Be Ve, Hord BacE ¥ Vb L

vbﬂ -
v Combe Mo Le) FaoeatonT ey Toport, Gouebtor Comy,
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place became Imown as Gloucester Court House, and the nare
"Botetourt?, with the sxzeeption of the hotel, high school, snd
Rezonis lodge, which are still known by that name, passed out
of exiastense, On June 5, 1819, the county clerk's office
durned, thereby destroying many of the reeorda.“ A%t the bew
ginning of the Way between the States, “the county records

were moved to Richmond for safe keepings During the invasion
of Richmond they were desmtroyed; however, s few court records
that were not moved withatood the destruction of war, and are
among the records in the county dating before 1860.

In 1790 a further division of Gloucester was made
when the lsgislature of the state pmssed the following cnacte
ment:

"Be it enacted by the Ceneral Asserdly,

That from and after the first day of liay next,

the county of Gloucester shall be divided into

fwo distinet countles, that is to say, all

that part of the saild county lying to the

sastward of & line, to begin at the mouth of

North River, thence up the eastern branch of

the mill pond to the head of muddy creek,

thence down the said creek to Plankatank

River shall be ono distinet county and

called and kmown by tho name of lNathews,

and the residue of the same ¢ ghall

reotain the name of Gloucester®.

This division included the parish of Kingsiton, thus leaving
Gloucester with Abingdon, Ware, and Potsworth Parishes. After
the separation of Mathews, the county contalned 255 square

miles, or 135,544 mcres, covering an area twenty-seven miles

or
2 -3
——————— .

' &, Glousester Comnty Court Recoprds, 1319«20
B Tt tetae T e O e XII



long and sight miles wides ,

The county 1s bordered on the north by the Planin-
tank Rivers om the esst by Hathews County, North kiver, and
ths present l&bjnek Bay, which was kmown originally as Mock
Jack Bays on the south by the York River and the Chesapcake
Bays on the west by the York River and King and Queen County.
The beautiful Severm River, the broad “map:.ng Ware Rivor, snd
several creeks, such as Sarsh's, Sedmfs, Wilson's, and Porow
portank, flow Inland, thereby giving access of a wator frontage
to many pleces in tho county, On these wator courses the lands
are low, level, and wery productive; further back, they ere

E highor ana gently wndulating. No portion is very far from deop
%nm. The soil is generally a sandy loam, with rich alluvial
£ Jonas along 1te reny streans.®

As Glousester was desirably situsted from the stand-
point of climatic and geographic conditions, people began to
settle there at an-sarly date. In 1635, Augustine tarner ac-
muired the Pirst land grant in that section, Prior to this
timo, the inhabitants of the colonies were very ceutious and
sfraid to branch off into the wilderness. In 1642, Thomas
Curtis, John Jones, Hugh Gwymne, and Richard Wiatt took up
tracts of lend in Gloucester. Others who mcquired early land

COLLERE O

grants were James Whitnoy in 16485, John Robins in 1645, Thonas
Seswell in 1646, Lewls Burwsll end George Roade in 1648, Richard
Kemp and Francis Willis in 1649, Jolm Smith and lordecal Cooke

6. YVirginta Agrioulture and Immigration Report, 1910, page 145
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in 1650, end Jobn Page and Thomas Todd in 16537 Bach of
these grants ineluded large acreage. It is Imown that as
early ag 1664 the planters of Gloucester were interested in
rafsing silkworms, because during that yoar Major Thomas Walker
of Gloucester reported that there were 13,642 mmlberry tress
Plented, and an additional mumber of 56,155 wepe planted the
following year. At this time the principel cultivated orop
was tobecoo, In 1682, tobacco was o plentiful that 1t bocame
almost worthless, and two-thirds of the opop in Gloucester was
eut down and destroyed.d

In 1710, Gloucester was the most populous comty in
Virginia. The plantatifons, small principslities memned by
1iving machinery, supplied every article of home conswption.
The 1ife of a Gloucoster planter possessed s fentastic ine
dependence, He gave a general supervision to his affairs, but
8 aense of ownership and mastery sdded zest to thls burden,
In the morning he visited his Pfields on his wellw-kept steed,
while towards the middle of the day he usually visited other
planters and discussed crops, polities, or any othoer gquestion
of interesit, The owners of these plentations were not a
moneyed aristocracy, but people vwho were good providers, ine
dependent and congenial, The planter had hls own oystermen,
earpenter, and blackswmith., Iiks the master, the miastress of
the house had the whole reaponsibllity of operating the home

g: Robins, Sally Nelson, op. cite

Bruece, P. A& Eeonomf’.c story of Virginia during the
Sevon%eenﬂm.aenﬁ, pp'.‘%ﬁ - . =
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and supervtsins the work of preparlng meals and cleaning the
mnsion. | In the evening, she entertained lavishly, sonetimes
by giving dances, when the negro slaves would play on their
flddles, other times by giving sbundant dinners. This marked
the Jife of the average mistresa.

Gloucester is rich in tradition and historys On its
shores once lived the powerful Chief Powhatan, who ruled his
ribe with genius. Here, too, his daughter, Pocahontas, saved
the life of Captain John Smith, who had been condemmed to dle,
Gloucester remained the homs of the Indisns until 1688, when the
Chickoyackes, which was the last tribe to inhabit (loucoster,
moved out of the county. In addition to the home of Powvhatan,
we find in Gloucester several mensions thet were bullt by 'ea}rly
settlers. These old stately mansions are monuments io the glory
of the past. Among these are "Rosewell", the home of the Pagos,
which was "ome of the most splendid manslons of Colonial
Virginia".s This old mansion was swept by fire in 1916, Another
¢ld mansion is "Warner Hall", the home of Augustine Warner, who

- also owned "Severn Hall". There is "Pairfield®, vhich was bulli

by the Burwell family, In addition to these, we find the home

of Mordecal Cooke and several others.l® Gloucester 1s not only
noted for 1ts historic homes, but 1%t also boasts of three old
churches: Abingdon, Ware, and Poplar Grove. To these the plant-
aps and thelr femilies went to attend services. The Abingdon and
Ware churches are still standing, and today people continue

9, Wilastach, Paul, Tidewater Virs%nla Ds 211
10, Stubbs, W. C., Deaeem. To of Lo t’scai Cooke, ps 5
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their worship in them.

The War belweern the States eames a pitiable erac dswn~
eds and silent canoes bore the negroes off in search fopr fz-oes—'
dom, A volgn of terror begen; the old men, women, and children
were left home, defenseless, whils the youth went to fight on
the battlefield for a cuase that they thought wes just. Vhen
the war was over, they returned home to Pind their slaves Ifree,
thely farms devasiated, snd their homes destroyed., Instead of
remaining idle and worrying sbout the lost cause, these people
began life anew, The war horse was hitched to the plow, and
the youth began to till the soil, something that they had not
done before. In a short time, the fielk were in cultivation;
and the owners had learned to do things that thelir slaves did
prior to the war.

Gloucester has always been prineipally an agricultural
county; and its people, in the mein, derive their livelihood
from the soil, The leading farm products of the county now
are hay, corn, oata; »ye, and wheat: The soil and climnte
are also admirsbly adapted to trucking, Such trucking erops
as Irish and sweet potatoes, peas, centaloupes, watermelons,
end the like, are railsed for the market. In addition to these
crops, several of the farmers of Gloucester have raised such
frults as pears, peaches, grapes, and stravberries, o a
profitable extent. The ralsing of poultry in recent years has
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ueen & very succesaful enterprise.’l The county is fairly
well timbered, prineipally with pines; while osk, hiclcory, and
eyprus sre found to a limited extent, This nabtural resource
18 used for lurbewr, rallrosd ties, pulp wood, and cord wood;
and serves to give emplojyment to many people,

Gloucester is very fortunate in having a small
percentage of tenants, In 1087, thay represented only 4.9 per
eent of the totsl population. The individual who is a tenmant
1gbors unde:» & gevers handicap. Ue 15 at most s shifting
element, hie average stay on 2 farm being about two years.la
His primary interest is producing, rather than improving the
801l and working for the betterment of society. With this in
view, the soll is usuelly worked until it 1s robbed of its
fertility; and as a result the community suffers, thus lmpaire
ing the church, school, and commmity 1ife.

In addition to being su agricultural county,
Gloucester has the advantage of having a long waterfront, where
an extensive seafood busliness is carried on, Glouceaster is pro-
bably more largely engaged in the oyster planting industry than
any other county in Tidewater. The fisheries of the county are
very exﬁensive and valusble, enploying large capital and lsbor,
A Mge percentage of the people in the lower part of the county
derive their living almost entirely from the water.

Prom the foregoing facts, we see that Gloucester is

1l. A Handbook of Viepginia Published by Department of Agricul=-
R e A ey 2 =

TuFe De
12, UnTesrslty of Tiro¥ufs Nows Letter, Februscy 1, 1097
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adventageously aituated In that lts elimete permits the growe
ing of pracktically any orop, and its aituation on the water's
edge maskes 1%t poénible for a large per cent of its population
to deal in seafood. In additlion to fammings thereby plecing the
people In e posltion vhers they are practically independent,
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CRAPTER IXI

EARLY EDUCATION IN GLOUCESTER
INCLUDING TiE OLD
FIELD SCHOOLS, ACADEMIES, AND FREE SCHOOLS

During the colomial perilod, Virginia, like the other
original stetes, was Gominated mwore or less by the religlow
aristoeratic conceptions of school govermment and support,
conesptlons that were common to the thought and practice of
0ld England, Education reflected the socisl philosophy and
safeguerded the economicesocial interests upon which the
plantation system was bullt, Under patromage of the Church,
sertaln parishes in Virginia supported Latin grammsr schools,
though 1%t can not be said that even z majority of the churches
did this, In sorw of the agrlicultural sections of the state
1t was usecless for the Church to undertake such a plan, bscause
the groat distance between plantatiocns made 1t fmpossible for
a school to lave sn enyrollment that justified its exlistence.
In thils case, as was true in Gloucester County, the Church saw
that the children of indigent parents were given a practical
educatlon, appropriate to their soelal standing, through
apprenticoship to a master of one of the trades.l In some

1. Ware Parish Records. Many childrén of indigent parents
were bound out ih this WAYe



instances, we f£ind thet charseteristic English benevolence
motivated the founding of the eav:t_:r tomn charity schools, the
lLencasterian schools, the infant schoole, the Sunday schools,
and other private »ural and wban educational enterprises
in behelf of the Virginia poors

The masters of the majority of the schools were
slergymen, who were largely educated in English schools, The
consensus of opinion was that the people preferred to have
clergymen for their teachers, because in 1698 thers was a
proposition before the Committee on Propoasitions to the follows-
ing effect:

"No ome shall undertake the education

o e s, et ook o e Iy prarenges

suribe to the canons®,
These men had to be upright and scber, and conform in thely
religious opinion to the doetrine of the Cimwrch of England.
The peoople werse wvery mich interested in having thelr ohildr@
tutored by one who possessed a degree of culture as well as
Jmowledge. Thers must have been a llmited mumber who undertook
the task of teaching during this early period, because a styrong
sentiment prevailed in the colony in favor of glving eli the
encouragonent possible to school masters in order to 1nereas:e
their mmber.' This fact is rovealed by the smilmss of the
fee which they wore expected to disburse in order to obtein a

2. Hinutes the House of Burgesses, Colonlal Entry Book



15

13cense, The fec was a few pounds of tobseco, to compensate
the clerk for his trouble in writing out the certificate.d

During the transition from colony to comnonweeslth,
the free common schools were slowly evolving, but thelr ocg=
tablishment wea a result of great effort, Redicel institution=
al changes d1d not take place, As beforse the Revolutionary
War, thers were still two clgsses of people in Virginia, The
upper, or wealthy, class could not conceive the idea of having
their childron educated in the same school with the childron of
the lowor, or working, claes. The lower classes did not patrone
ize the free schools because the name "pauper” had been attached
to most of them. With these opinions prevailing, we could not
hope for & system of sducation w:gtil a strong middle class
developed. Before it could become a success, the state would
have to assume the responsibility of .po;mlar education as come=
thing'mre then s "pious ;mm&f‘mﬂmmt:&'4 or = means of protecting
soclety agalnst vagrancye '

The Interest that the churches in Gloucester had in
the train:!;n“g of the poor 1s revealed by the meny instances when
children of indigent perents wers bound out to learn a trade or,
in some Instances, to learn how to read, espscially the Bible.
We find recorded in the Vestry Books of Ware Parish that on
October 4, 1669, it was ordered that Nicholas Lewls be bound

Se »Agx-mo, Institutional History of Virginia in the Seventeenth
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out wntil he wes twenty-ona years of age in order to learn the
SAT. of coopery.d This wequest must have beon exccuted, because
the following extract was found in the minutes of Septerbor 10,
17003
"Bind out unto Hennery Horrish an

orpb.an boy by name of Nicholas Lewis

unto him wewes for to instruet and

learng wwew=ws ve true art and skill

of o cooper”,B
Later, in October, 1707, we find:

#It is ordsred by this present

vastry that the chwreh-wardens doe

bind out Richard Austin unto Richard

Hill andé the Sd. Hill i3 %o give t;}e

Sde Austin three years schooling®,
The interest of the Church in eﬁmhi;:g the youth waes not conw
fined teo the boys alone but was oxtended to the girls also. On
M¥arch 22, 1711, it was voted that "Ezekiel Smith be sllowed 800
pounds of tobaecco and cask at the laying of the next levy for
keeping and schooling Jame Hollowsy®.S Hany othor Instancos could
be cited whare the Church provided for schooling or training the
children of the unfortunate ones. I a boy or girl desired to
have an education or trade, he could usually get it by making
it known to either the citizens or the church wardens,

In eddition to the interest shown by the Church, we
£ind that several individuals were very much interested in

.educating the poor children of Gloucester County. Thias interest

8, Ware Parish Records, p. 60

k4 pe 91
8. I, p. 112
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wes shown by making bequests for the purpose of establishing
free schools, In 1668, a Mre Eing devised a tract of land
containing about 100 seres to the parish in which he resided,
for the foundation and meintenance of a free atshf.wo.‘t..9 In 1675,
Henry Peasley mede possible a bequest for the purpose of es=-
tablishing a free school for the children of Gloucester, This
eonsisted of a plantetion covering 600 acres, 10 cows, and a
breeding msre, From time to time, this original gift of Henry
Pessley was supplemented with slaves from generous people who
were also intepested in the training of the youth in the county,
¥hen this gift wos mede, lMp, Poasley ordersd that o froe school
with a school mester should be kept forever for the education
of the children of the Parishes of Abingion emd Ware, Owing -
to the sparsely settled commmity end the small mumber taking
advantage of the school, the intentions of the sald Peasley
were not exactly carried outj howewver, the begquest "continued
without interruption for eighty ymg’um

In 1786, the ministers, churchesardens, and vestry=
men of the Parishes of Abingdon snd Ware represented to the
General -Ass@bly that

AR R e g

et ok e e bl T

e O e BRI B

After henring the petitioners, the General Assemiﬁy authorized

9: Henlng, Statutes st Lar Vole VII, pp. 41 £F
20, J. A. 0. ChandTer and To . Thanos, Colonial Virginis, pe 107
11, Hening, ops cits, Vol. VII, pp. 41 £T,



?essthat the present ministers, churchw~
wordens, and vestrymen of the said two
parishes of Abingdon and Ware and the
minigters, church-wardens, and vestrymen
of the same pariahes, for the time belng
shall, sand are hereby nominsted end
appointed trustees and governors of the
sgid land, slaves, and other pramises
forever, and that the seid trusteez and
governors shall forever hereafter stand
and be incorporated, esteblished, and
founded in neme and deed a body politic
and corporate, to have continmance
forever, by the name of trustees and
governors of Peasley's free school, and
that the sald trustees may have
pevpetual suecession and that by that
neme they and their successors may
forever hereafter have, hold, and

enjoy the above mentioned track or

parcel of land, slaves, and other pre-
mises, with thelr increase, and that

the said trustees and governors and

thelr successors or the great part of
them, by the same name, shall and may
have power, ability, and capecity to
demise, leass, and grant the said

trect or parcel of land, slaves, and
other premises for any term of years,

not exceeding twenty-one yeasrs, or for
any term of years determinable upon one,
‘two, or three lives, reserving the best
and most improved ronts that ean bs got
for the same and to take, scquirs, and
purchase, and to sue sand be sued, snd

to do, perform, and execute all other
lawful acts and things good, necessary,
end profitable for the sald incorporation
in ag full and ample a wenner and form, to
all interests, constructions, and purposss
ag any other 'éody. And be it further sne
seted that the sald trustees, sovernors and
their successors or the greater pert of
them shell snd they are hereby empowered and
required to ersect and found a free school iIn
some convenlent part in cach of the sald
parishes of Abingdon and Ware and by writing
under thelr common seal to nominate and
appoint when and as often as they shall
think necessary such person or persons as
they shall approve of to be mnsters,



before they be admitted to keep school
shall undergo an examination before the
minister of the parish in which the
school he shall be appointed master of
shall be situated and produce a certle
fleate of his capacity and also a license
from the povernor or commander in chief
of the dominion for the time boing

agreeable to hils majéstles i.nstruegions H
and the said trustoes and govornors shall
issue and apply the rents of sald track
or parcel, of land, slaves, and other
premnises for the erecting, msintaining,
and supporting e fres school and school
master in eachk of the said parishes
forever for the education of the children
of the sald parishes respectively and the
sald trusises and governors and their
successors for the time being shall and
may have full power and amthoﬁty to
visit the sald free schoolsh.

From the passage of this sct until 1814, the rents
accumilating for the use of the property were used to support
a school in esach of the two parishes, The schools were not
as succesaful as had been hoped by the people, but they were
superior .to the one that was originally esteblished in 1675.
In 1814, the people of Vare, Ablngdon, and Petsworth Parishes
potitioned the Cenoral Assembly asking that the proceeds which
bad been derived from the sale ofk‘ the glebe lands be pleced in
the hands of trustees for the purpose of erecting a poor house,
a work house, ond a achool house. They also asked that the
slaves which wers then owned in connectlon with the Peasley
estate be sold and the money be doevoted to the same purpose.
The Genersl Assswbly granted the request and appointed Phillip
Tabb, Natheniel burwell, Peter Wiatt, William Robins, Horgan

12, Ihid.
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Torkies, Skaife ﬁhiﬁing, Willilem X. Perrin, William Harwood,
John Stevens, Jemes Baytop, Francis Whiting, Richard Jones,
John Lewis, Jolm LK. Carey, wnis;m Jones, Thomas B, Fox, and
Jolm B. Seawell, as trustees who were to transact all business
under the incorporated name "Glcmcester Cherity SGhool",ls
Thege same trustees also served as overseers of the poor. From
the passage of thi_s act, the gift of Mr, Peasley and the funds
derived from the sale of the glebe landg in Gloucester were
placed in the hands of the above trustees and managed together,
A school house was now estsblished in connectlon with the poor
house, and children of indigent parents were permitted to enroll,
As the cost of mansging the poor house and operating the school
was kept together, it is impossible to determine the axact
amount of money that wes actually spent for educational purw
poses, The same organization that was created by the General
Assembly in 1814 to attend to the funds of the Gloucester Charlty
School continued until 1871, when the trustees of the poor were
sbolished and the offlee of Superintendent of the Poor was
created. ' During this same session.of the leglslatwre, 1t was
authorized that the trustees of the Glducestgr Charity School
 should cooperate with tho Superintendent of the Poor in dis=- -
posing funds belonging to this incorporation, pro;riﬁed ne more
than the lntlmst was used.lé )

In 1886, the boa?d of trustees of the Gloucester

13, Acts of the Assembly, 1814: ‘"Appropriating the Proceeds of
The dicbe 8 and other Property belonging to the Parishe
es of Abingdon, Vere, and Petsworth, in the County of Gloue-
coster, and for Other Purposes,® Pacsed Jaamary 25, 1014,

14, Acts of tho Asserbly, 1370-71, Chav. 301
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Charity Sehool wes authorized by the General Assenmbly to sell

a tract of land Jmown a@ the freewschool ficldI® This lema

wns situsted in s place thet is mow known as Robin's Heck,

This land was sold In swall parcels. Again in 1914, the trustees
were suthorigzed to Vsell additionel land belonging to t'hq Glou~
gester Charity School, Befween 1914 and 1920 all the reql eatate
belonging to the charity school was sold. In 1920, the @ystaes
were discharged, end the merbers of the Board of Supervisors of
the county served as ttustees of the fund, 16 1n 1922, the question
of separating the funds derived from the sale of the Peansley es»
tate and those derived from the sale of the glebe lands arose.
This was en Impoasible task, because the burning of the clerk's
office on June 3, 1819,17 ard the destruction of the county
records during the War botween the staéea destroyed most of the
books pertaining to the transaction of business relating to the
two funds. During this same session, the General Assernbly,

after being petitioned by the voters of the county, dissolved the
Gloucester Cherity School Board and created the Peasley School
Board, composed of the division superintendent of schools, the
clerk of ths court, and the chalirman of the board of supervisors.
This board was authorized to invest the money belonging to the
Peasley School Board in ssfe securitlies and distribute the incbome
from this fund %o the several district school boards of (loucester

15. Acts of the Assewbly, 1885«86, Chap. 227
16, et of the Ksseble® TOMEY. Chon: 579
17, TToucestor Court Reemrde 0TS
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County in proportion to the school population of the seid school
atstricts,}® 1In 1924, the Peasley School Board was abolished; and
the funds, emounting to (22,244,866, were turned over to the
treasurer of Cloucester County, with the understanding that they
metobeplwedtothacnditefﬁha school board and expended
for school purposes in equal amovnt in the districts of Ware,
Abingdon, and Petsworth,®® fThus the funds derived from the
Peasley estate and the glebe lands were ﬁx-ansferred to the school
boards and expended for school purposes.

In addition to the interest ahm by the churches and
in addition to the bequests mde,}?y generous~hesrted individuals
for the education of the poor ehiiérm, the county received
allotments from ma state f;c;@ ths purpose éi‘ establishing and
meintaining scheols fo:; the children of indigent parents, 1In
1826, there were fifteen schools in Gloucester County with an
mronmn\:. of seventy-nine poor children, During this same
year, it was reoported that %re were one hundred poor chzidron
in the countye This represents a very small mmbei,, woen we
consmer the population of Gloucester at this times The total
amount expended for educating these poor children betwsen1
Septerber 30, 1826; and October 1, 1827, was (420,50, The sum
of $420.59 represents a very small amount, but the sducational
facllities of the county could not have besn limited on account

Asserbly, 1922, Chap. 438; approved Harch 24,
Asaemblz; igee, chap. ey approved lsrch 20,

5
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of finances, for at the end of this same session a balance

of $51069.69 was reported by the tressurer. In this same report,
the county school commlssioners stated that the funds wero
sufficlent for their purpose and that zmch good was done to the
poor by the nsﬁmum."’ In 1856, the school commlssloners
again reporteds

"ihe commissioners state that the
funds being emple for the education
of all the poopr children thoy eould
procure to attend school, they have
hereotofore made no dimrgmimtion as
to sex. Their Interpretation of the
term Yindligentt used in the law is
that the ehildren educated mst be
the chlldren of those whom they
personally mow to be incapable of
educating them or or&ans without
property or income®,

By 1850, the necessity for good competent taache&'s
was realiszed more than it had been in the past. The superine
tendent of schools in Gloucester suggestedk the irportance of
sending children to competent teachers or not sending them to
gchool at an.” In 18562, o most encouraging report from the
school comission in Gloucester appeared. The report stated
that the

"eormissioners have not visited the

.schools &8 regularly as it is thelyr

duty, but they can safely say it is

a great deal of good resulting from

the primary schoole in this county.

The teashers are generally capsble
and of good deportment, There is

20, Abstract of the school Coxmissionors! Report for 1826
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no preference given to thoe echildren

of elther sex. fThe school quota

for the coumbly i3 entirely in- .

" aufficient for thé education of the

indigent children3 and the board is

decldedly of the opinlon that nothing

but a system of district schools

will meet the want of the people®,2d

: During this same year thers were still fifteen achools
in the county, but the nuwber of poor children attending these
schools had incpeased to one hundred and forty-eight, The total
number of poor childrem in the ecounty had increansd from one
hundred in 1826 to four hundred and sixzty-nine in 1852, For
educating these poor childrsn, Gloucester spent §361.19, making
the rate of tuitlon for esch pupil renge from one and one-half
to four cents per day. Bome of these teschers were a Mr, Stubbs,
#rs. Imeretia Buck, and Mrs. Martha Berry., The school in which
Mrs. Berry taught was situsted in the lower part of Gloucester,
about one mile: from the present Severn Post 0ffice. On Jume 17,
1859, a tornado passed through this section and turnsd the
school over while it was ri}led with chiidren, With tho ex=
ception of one who suffered & broken collsr bone, the children
did not receive any injuries.

In addition to the mony forms of education that were
provided for the poor children, the land~holders of Gloucester
put forth a grest effort to educate their own children. Some of
these employed private tutors, who taught the children in their

own homes: others sent their children to be educated in what

£28. Second Audlitor's Report of the State of the Literary Fund
Tor the yoar 18533 nnd Froceedin:s of The nelool Cormission
for the year ending 50th Septervor 1062, Pe BI
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was knowm es 014 Field Schoolsi and atill others sent thelrs
to acedemies, The academies and the 0ld Fleld Schools were
practically the same, the only difference being that the ‘
acafemies were usually incorporated arﬂ amployed more than one
teacher, while the 0ld Fleld Schools were ususlly composed of
one room and teught by a single teacher, The name "0ld Pield"
- waa glven these sohoolé because they wore usually estsblished on
some vacant spot that was then unsulteble for cultivation. Some
times these schools were surrounded by swall pines or broom
strawe In 1781, a Rev. Mr, Hughes, the minister of Abingdon
Church, taught a first-class school near that church. The fact
that this was a school of high quality is shown by 1ts fruits
in the many who were sducated there. NVeny made their nerk in the
world and were so favorably affected by the teaching of lr.
Bughos, that one of them, Dr. Willlam Tallaferro, established a
school on hie owmn property and secured John MePherson, a Scobche
man, to teach. He dld this In order that his family and the
neighberhood might have the sdvantages of a school. The snrolle
ment reached seventy-five at one time, Young nmen from all parts
of Gloucester and the surrounding countles attended this school.
After two years, this school was sbolished, and r, licPherson
was called to wnliamshurg.24

In 1796, a lottery was authorized for erecting en

24, V a School Report, 1885: '"History of Education in
GUCos’ County, Virginla", by Robert H. Franklin,
Superintendent.



asadesty on the glebw land of Ware Parish, In the County of
Gioucester, to be known as Ware Parish Academy,Z® s
scademy perhaps had no existence, becauss we have no roecord
of its opening or operation Ffor work,206

In 1818, the Newington Academy was incorporated.27
This asademy was made possible by the genserous subscription of
$1,000 each from Dr., William Tallaferro, Captein William Robins,
¥rs Thomas T. Tebb, Dr, Jemes Debney, end ¥ir, Thomas Smith,
ey purchased Newington, a large and commodious mansion near
Gloucester Court llouss that was formerly owned by the Whiting
fawmily, This hod & little over one hundred acres of land attache
od. The scadomy was Ffirst intrusted to the management of Nr,
Join Smith, a native of Augusta County, who wes regarded as a
good toacher. During his second year abt Newington, he wma zmesist-
ed by Mir, El1jeh Barnum, a2 native of Comnecticut, who was re-
commended to the trustees by Dr. Gaius Deans, a northern gentlse
man. Hr, Barinm was exanined by Dr. Tallaferro and Dr. Dabney,
who were noted for their classical education. He wes appointed
es usher, and remained at the academy one year, at the ond of
whiech time he was mucceeded by the Rev. Hr. Hughes, who also re-
mained at the scademy only one yoar, The Rev. ir. fughes was
succeeded as assistant tescher by lir. Gustavius Sclmidt, a
Swede, who remmined in this position for two years. At this
time, Mr, Smith, who had served as principal since the school
wes organized, resiguned.

26, Morrison, A. J., The Degimning of Public Lducation in
-*

Virginia, 1776-1850, D
26, Journal ang Docwonts, L080=51, Docunent ©
27. Aets of Asgerbly, 1017-18, n. 151
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The school was now reorganized on a military basis,
Colonel John R. Cary was appointed to take care of the boarding
depsrtment, some of the English branches, and tactical instruee
tions, Mr. Williem T. Nichle took chargs of the classical derart-
meht and the remeining Englich brenches. At this time, the boys
even wore wniforms. After two yoars, Colonel Cary lef't the
acedemy, snd the military training was abendoned. Hp, Michie
remained sn additional year, acting as sole teacher. Vhen !,
Hichie retired, the property was sold to Mr, John Tabb, with the
understanding thet the school wrs to De kept in operation, The
schotl now opened under the care of Rev, Williem Calrns, who
had been called as Rector of Abingdon and Ware Parishes, He
held the position as tescher for a period of two or thres years.
We find that the academy now suspended operations for a fow years.
In 1881, John P. Seott, an Irishman snd & graduste of Dublin
University, took charge of the asademy. During his career at
Nowington, he wes ssslsted at one time or another by lr. Jolm
Stubbs, Mr. Roy Jones, a Scotchman nemed Stuart, and an Irishman
named Murraye Nre Scott was an eble classical teachep, He
required his pupils to translaste English books into Latin and
Greek oz well as the ancient authors into English.  Ho was a
rigid disciplinarian, often "using a good wholegomo flogging® -
as the penalty for idleness, Under his influence, the ecadeny
won high esteem; however, after s porlod of five years, he left
the acedemy, and was succeaded by the brothers Albert . 3Stubbs
and Robert I'. Btubbs. The rigid disclpline that had been es-
tablished under lirs Scott wes dlscontinued, and affection sube-

stituted for fear. During the a.dministmtio%%% p%&}% WREEEAR 5
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Stubbs, the average enrollment was sbout £ifty. The academy
wes in the full tide of a successful career vhen early one
morning in June, 1838, fire destroyed the bullding, thus ending
the career of an outstanding academy and sirlking a serious
blow to the educationasl interest of Glousester County. The
Stubbs brothers taught day school until the end of the tem,zs
Another academy of high reputation was the Benvenue
for girls, This academy atood in the fork of the rosds leading
from Gloucester Court House to King and Queen County, on one side,
and Belroi, on the other, It was established about 1825 by Miss
Panny Bughes, s middle-sged single lady with great admintstrative
ability. With the exception of a short period, Hiss Bughes wes
the sole teacher at thils institution., She, 1ike Mr. Scott, who
taught at Fewington, used the rod on sll occasions, Benvemue
enjoyed a high reputation and was the outatanding edueational
institution for girls in Gloucester, In 1843, it was burned,
thus depriving Gloucester of encther educational institution,2?
Several yesrs afterwards a large house was buillt on the site of
the old Be&xvenue, but the enterprise wes e fallure, becsuse the
o0ld academy had lost its prestige during the period of inactivity.
About 1850, the Belle Rol Acadomy was started. This
academy was situated about five miles from Gloucester Court
House. The school survived but a short period. On March 15,
1858, the General Assembly of Vipginia passed the following

28, V nia School Report, 1885: "A Sketeh of Newington Aca=-
demy, en Institution oF Targe Reputation in Gloucoster
County Some Fifty and More Years Ago", by Gon. William B,
Taliaferro.

£0. Vipginias School Rogc‘:’rr_t‘ 1885: "History of Iducation in
Tloucester County, VIrginia", by Robert . FPranklin,
Supocrintendent.

20, Virginis School Report, 1885: "History of Fducation in
‘G‘.l'o'\%'e&ﬁsr Tounty, Virginla", by Robert i, Franklin,
Superintendent.



resolutions

"Be it enmcted by the General Asserbly

thet Jefferson W. Stubbs, John Le

Hebble, George W. Smith, Mary L. Hughes,

Joghus L., Garrett, Celsb Leiph, Jolm

Lelgh, Alexander Hogg, end Willlam H,

Shield be eonstituted a body politie

and corporate, by the name and style

of Cappahosle Academy and by that name

shall have power to rsceive and hold,

to them and their successors forever,

any lamds, tensments, goods and

chattels of what kind aocever which

may have been purchesed, delivered,

or glven to tmE for the use of the

2aid academy”.

This school had been orsgenized but & short time vhen
the war started, It nover did veach the fame thet was hoped
to be realized by thoss who inaugurated the idea. Aftor the war,
it resumed opsration as a one-room school, remaining like this
wntil the session of 1870~71, when it became a part of the publie
free school systema .

The school system in Gloucester, like the other equnt:lea
th Virginia, was hit a severe blow when the War botween the States
broke out. It sppeared ns thoush the whole cause wms lost.

Those men who had been teschling left the classrooms in order to
-£ight on the battlefleld. Those women who had rendered a great
service in the schools left their posts in ox-der to attend to
home duties or to help comfort those who were on the field of
battle, Many slaves left their mastors and Look refuge beyord
the bvattle 1line, thereby leaving every duty to the care of the

master and mistreas who were not accustowed to the toils of

30, Acts of the Assembly, 1857-58, Chap. 360
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everyday life., A few who were exempted from the call for troops
taught echoo} during this trying period, but the training that
the majority of the children recoﬁod wos Qt their mother's
Eneee mnm'nimover, thamnmhndi‘mghtm the
£161d of battle returned to their homes and found thelr slavos
fres, thelr farms devastated, their buildings gone, and the many
institutions that had been built up before the war, a total ruin,
In spite of all these handicaps, theoy began toiling as if the
war had never been fought,

" Ke. John Tabb, a young wan of the county who hed
fought with the V. H. I. cadets, returnet home to take up the
task of tutoé!.ng his brother, As the majoriuvy of the schools
had been closed during the war and hed not yet been opened,
the demand for education wes so great that he was asked to
tutor s nmuber of pupils along with hie brother, This was the
‘beginning of the school which was later known as the Gloucscster
Academy, a non-denominational institution. During a period of
two or three years, lr. Tebd continued to teach day school,
st the close of which time he estsblished a boarding school,.

To this school came not only Virginians but students from as
far north as 6anada and as far south as Texas, yet at no time
wsg the enrollment greater than thirty.

The eurriculum consisted of Latin, Greek, Germen,
French, history, mathematics, literature, mechanical drawing,
and bookkeeping. To assist him in the teaching of these
subjects, he employed two teschers, Thoe fgct that the University
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of Virglnia recognized the work that was accomplished in the
school and admitted its students on an equal basis with those of
. other first-class acsdemies, shows the high standard of traine—

ing at the institution. In addition to the subject matter that
was taught, morals snd the right principles of living were
gtressed. On several occasions, lir. Tabb invited the ministers,
regardless of thelir denominational affilistions, to come to the
school and address the student body. Life in the boarding Gepart-
mont was wholesome, congenial, and similar to that of a private
home

This academy was 2 great asset to the county, 1t being
the only school in the county that prepared students for college
between the close of the war and 1908, when the first high school
was established. After the establishment of publiec high schools
in the county, the enroliment at the academy gradually decressed,
unt1l 1914, when the institution was discontinued,
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THE STRUGGLE FOR FREE SUPPORTED SCHOOLS



' CHAPTER IV
THE STRUGGLE FOR PREE SUPPORTED SCHOOLS

_ It is generally mccepted that the first Americen
proposal for e more modern state sehool system was the Virginia
Bill for the More General Diffusion of Knowledgs, submitted on
June 8, 1779, by Jefferason, as a part of the report of the
revisors of the state eod&} This plan was on & very large
scale and is supposed %o have been tov radical to be Incorporat-
ed into the state constitutlon; however, in 1796, a bill calling
for an aldermanic system of schools passed the General Asssmbly.z
This bill provided for local taxes or commnity subscriptions,
but did not mentlion state subsidy. According to Haddox, the
rocords show that no meetings were held, nor were any petitiona
for loesl taxes for the purpose of supporting schools preéentaﬂ.
to the courts of the various countles.d Many ressoris czn be
glven for the lack of intereat on the part of the peoplej such
as, thé lack of activity on the pért of the comty magistrates,
the extreme snd umnecessary sconomy on the part of some of the
people, and the lack of confidence fn the principle of establishe
ing such & system of schools, but the most outstending reason
was the lack of local assemblies or moetings to inform the people

Jefferson and Wyths, Report of the Revisors, LXXX1X, .
L. Ford, Letters Lﬂyf_ Jei’feraon, Tol. I1, ps i Maddox, opt. git, pe 12
2, House Journal, Dec. 28, 1796, "An Act to Establish Public

chools * *

3. Haddox, W. A., The Free $chool Idea in Virsinida before the
Civil Var, p. 1 hand —
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or to stir up interest. The average landownsr could not bear
the idea of having his property taxzed Lo help educate the
children of the poor or nonw-property class. He looked upon
education as something ‘that should be paid for, and not as a
gift to the psople. i ’

A spoecinl sommittee in the House of Delegates offered
in the fall of 1809 s bill to appropriate certain "escheats,
confiscatures, and forfeitures to the encouragement of learning®,
This bill passed the House on January 29, 1810, and was signed
with the concurrence of the Senate on February 8, 1810.% Under
this aet, the Second Auditor of the state wes instructed to open
an sccount with the Treasurer, to bs lmown as the Literary Fund.
The creation of this fund end the increased enthusimsm for
schools gave new encoursgement to the progrpss_ﬂ.ve people of the’
state, and stirred them to the point where they desired to work
until a system of public free schools was established in Virginia,
Each subsequent General Assembly enacted amendments or changes
to this bill, some for the advancement of the system, others not;
however, the foundatlon had been lald, and despite many adverse
oceurrences, the fund has continually increased, and as a result,
has rendered a good service.

The Optional District Free School Acts of Februery
26, 1829,5 was an attempt to keep abreast of the best experience
of other states, especially New Yorke The schools under this

4¢. House Journal, February 8, 1810
Be of the Ksaemblx. 1825-50, Chap. 12
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het were to bo directed by the Second Auditor, now designated
as the Superintendent of the literary Fund, This Act was an
attempt to convert the primary schools of 1818 into & common
school system that would include all pupils and avoid the
declaration of wvarty vhich wes construed to be meant by the
Acts of 1818. The Act of 1829 provided that each county be
divided into districts in which a school was to be placed, If
the people of the district contributed three-~fifths of the cost
of the school-houss, the school commissioners were authorized
to approperlate the rmining two~fifthe from the momey received
from the Literary Fl.lnd, provided 1t did not exceed ten por cent
of the county's quota. Ome scre of land had to be set aside,
also, The achool commissioners were authorized to give $100.00
out of the Literary Fund quote towards the salary of the Leacher
when the commmity supplemented it with a like sum. Schools
were pade free to all alike. They were controlled by thres
district trustees, two elected by the anmual contributors, and
one by the county school commissions The wealness of this Act
was that it did not force local taxabtion on property.

The most convincing data end news thet aroused people
to the point that action must be taken came in the educational
statisties of the United Stai:és census of 1840.6 1t stung the
pride of Virginia by having the state's 1lliteracy published,
People who had never been Interested in the advancement of

é. House Journal, 18413 Second Auditor's Report, Supplementary
Toeument ports SUPP
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sducation came to the rescue of the great ceuse. It stirred
& now end greater effort for common school legislation of the
scheracter that all northern and western atates were then con-
tending tar.v

Op October 7, 1841, a convention was held in Lexing=
ton, composed of delegates from the countles of Bath, Augusta,
and Rockbridge, for the purpose of proposing 2 plan for the
arganisatibn and suppox-f of common schools in Virginia, The
fundemental principles of this plan were the organlsation of a
system of district sehools under proper superintendence, and
the support of these achools by money derived from the Liteyary
Fund and & tax on property, These principles were desmesd
essential to any successful schome for the dissemination of
commmon leerning through all perts of the state. Hany other dew
tails that would posslibly help add to the success and help carry
out the two main principles were designated, These detalls wera:
first, that the people of every county and town should be orgsniz=-
ed into achool districts with defInite boundaries, eztept those
parte where the population was too sparse to sustain a school,
Vhenever twenty«~five children lived sufiieiently near to attend
the same achool, there & distriet might be lald off, for even
poor people in such a case may, with some publie encoursgement,
malntain a school during three or fouwr months .in the yeer,
Second, the school-house should be placed so that it will be
in convenlent reach of all and have pleasant surroundings.

%7, Haddox, W. A., The Free School Idea in Virpinia before
the Civil War, Do —_———— ——
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Third, the house-holders and parents in each district should
appoint a treasurer, a collector foz- the district, and any
other school officers mceasar,v. The treasurer and colloctor
were to receive & moderste commission for their trovble, but
the trustess should act gratultously. Fourth, sach ;arga county
end each two oy three smell counties should have a superintendent
of sohools, He should be of good character, industry and
Jearning,. Fifth, the countles of the state should be aistribut-
ed into four equal groups, called sections, with 2 sectional
superintendent presiding over sach.®

Out of the enthusissm for better schools wi#ich had
developed since the publishing of the United States census of
1840, came the two Acta of 1846; The first of these Acts
amended the exlsting priwmary school Act by insuvzurating a system
of county superintendents to be elected by the county board of
sehool commissioners. Each superintendent was authorized to act
as clerk and treasurer of the baard; His salary was two and
ane~half per cent of all money spent for edusation during the
previcus years The counties hmd to be divided into dictricts,
and a trustee had to be elected from each dlstrict.?® wnis
ereated a uniform system timoughout ths staté‘ It is claimed
that centralized state control over education reached its
highest point during the ante-bellum deys when this bill was
enacted, A

8¢ Re rt ot’ tho Commls s;on oI‘ Education 1899-1900, Vol. I.
ome is orLCs CULIEeN upont Common School
Edueation in Virginis, chapber VI, p. 381, Washington,

Governmen Printix%i; Co., :
9 Acts of Ake A -46, Chepe 40. Passed larch 54
46 , “Tan Aot to Awmend tho Prosent Pri imary School ‘wstcn
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e idea that public educetion was for the poor
alone was especiaslly prevalont in Virginia during the period
immediately at the close of the Revolutlonary War. About that
time, Virginia hed a strong and powerful upper class snd a
large group of people in the lower class. As educstion at publie
expense or public education, as we lknow it today, seemed %o pare
take of the nature of charity, the sristocracy would not
patronize sny form of 1t, but trained their children at heme
or in private schoolse As the poorer people resented the idea
of having the word "pauper” attached to the so-called free
school, they refused to allow their childven to attend 1t. Thus
pubife adﬁation had to awalt the development of a strong middle
slass before it could be successfully established. Despite all
of this, several attempts were made to establish free schools.
Thess attempts may not have been as auecesafu; a8 they were hoped
%0 be, but they kept the idea of public\education before the
publie,l0

During the ;Eirst thirty yesrs of the nineteenth century,
the state had established a permanent fund for public education,
had provided for the use of state appropriations for school
bulldings, for employing teachers, and for buying supplies for
the poor children; but we mist say that the Genoral Assembly
uaemoﬁ. more interested in the education of indigent children
than gr the masses. Nearly half a century wes still to elapse

10, Snaz:].y, Hyds, and Bigcos: State Grants-in-Ald in Virginia,
P»




before public education as a state system mét with general
dpprovel, yot during this period the counties desired grester
state support,1¥ o

The fight for public education in Vixfginia was a
gra&x;alvproeeSsg It came through the untiring efforts that
were put fowth by thoée who believed in its cause, Unliike
many other enterprises, 1t did not develop over night. "Ihe
m’hne school system was mede possibis by the members of the
195151&111*3 and the peopie who gontinuan;v ecalled mectings in
bohalf of the syatem,

The counties and citles neer Gloucester put fortl:z a
great e&‘fbrt to educate the children in the respeetive places.
The burgesses as early as 1631 potitioned Governor Nicholson
tc send appeals for a grammar schoel, In this request, 11; was
stated that the children of Virginia were deprived of & llbepal
education, and that ‘

"many of the parishes lacked the instruction

and comfort which might be sxpected from a

pious snd learned ministry, and that they

have unanimously resolved that the best

roemedy for these great evils is to ask for

mn::iggﬁgﬁgeet and endow g free school

On October 30, 1754, & convention, with delegates from
verious parts of the state, held at the College of William and
Yary, adopted the followings:

"schools therefore, are of great

importance where the youth may have
an opportunity of belng taught what

11, Ibide, Dps 46w48
T m:'d, Mery Newton: The Story of Virginia's Pirst
Century, p. 313



is preper, of resding their Blbles,

of learning thelr prayers and

catechism, vwhere, in short, they

may by due menagement, be inaansibly

led to think, talk, snd act as bew

come Christisns®,

In sddition to hl;ese, we £ind that in 1675 Francis
Prichard, of fnmutcr County, left a large estate for the es-
teblistment of & free schools William Gordon, in 1685, gave
ene hundred acres for the establishment ol a free school in
Biddlessx County. In Essex County ¢ Sundey school was opened
for the purposs of teaching children to read. In 1819, a
stmiler school wes established in Westmorelend Countys.i% 3s
sarly eas 1828, Colonel Robert Blakey, of Middlesex County,
lef't a bequest for free elementary school purposes in thet
pounty, In 1838, we find that an Act of General Asserbly gave
the Middlessx County Commissioners $1,000.00 from the estate of
Colonel Robert Blakey for the purpose of helping to establish
a district system of common echnols,ls In other countiea of
Eastern Vieginia we find several bequeats for the beneflt of
sducating, similar to the above.

In Gloucester County, thers were several who worked
for the development o@ sdusation by msking bejuests to ite
eause, In 1688, a My, King made a donetion for the foundation
and maintenance of a free schoolel® 1n 1675, Henry Peasley

left a parcel of land for the purpose of establishing snd

@ Perry, William 5., P s Relat to the Church in
Virginia, 1860- 2576 EE T oumral o the PeceeatTh i of the
. ention Held at the College of Willlam end Hary, October
30, 1754, De 417.
14. Maddox, Willlem A., The Free School Ides in Virginia before
15 113111 Civil War, g;b 50 10sm - -
. cts _0_! tiie iss 358-38, Merch 30, 1838
16, TMITiom End WAry usrteriy, Vol. V, p. 115
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maintaining a free school for the poor children of Ware and
Abingdon Parishes,l” From time to time, the original gift of
Henry Pessley was supplemented with gifts of slaves, etc.,
until 1t grew to be a substantisl trust.8 we find that many
of the ministers, especinlly those comnected wlith Abingdon and
Were Parishes, were interssted in furthering the cause of
education, The Rev, lir. Hughes, who 18 Mmowm more than eny
ather for his interest _in education, opened a school sbout the
tlose of the Revolutionary Wer, This school was situsted near
the Abingdon Church. In this achool Dr, Willlam Tallaferrowas
teught, a man who was 8o interested in education thet he made
. eonsiderable effort and sacrifice to secure for his family and
commmnity simllar sdventages. In 1816, we find John MePherson
established in the work of sducation.’® The school building
in whieh he tavght was furnished by Dr. Taliaferro. Obthers who
worlced for the advencement of education in Gloucester were
Captein Willlam Robins, lr. Thmmé T. Tabb, Dr. James Dabney,
and Mr. Thomas Smith, Hies Farny Hughes was another who maede
considerable sacrifice for the advancement of education.

In the year 1843, the HNessrs. Sswmel D. Puller, Joel
Hayes, Jefferson W. Stubbs, ldward Sears, William Hobdsy, John
A. Pointer, Richard Jones, A. (. Tallaferro, Robert Taylor,

17. Hening, Statutes st Larpgo, Vols VII, p. 41
- Ibm!

19, a School Re 1885: History of kducation in
%ﬂ' "%Emm, by Robept H. Frenklin,
Superintendent { )
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Williem R. Stubbs, R. Ce Curtis, snd Cary S. Jones served as
achool eonmissionpr&m Feople who served in this capaclty
during these times deserve great credit, because it was a

time when schools in general met with a limited approval, In
105258, Ure J. W. Stubbs served as county superintendent,

He traveled throughout the county investigating the sducatione
al eomﬁt;ona. On these trips he would often tulk with the
leading mm of the various commmities about the advaentages

thet would be geined fyom a gystem of education that was msde
public for everyone. lie wanted to see the day come when the
poor and the rich would attend the game schools, On the Board

of School Commissioners at this time were the Messrz. William
Shaskelford, 0. S. Kemp, Willlem ... Stubbs, John A. Harwood,
John W. Hugheas, Willism F. Lewelley, Jowl Hayes, Benjomin

Rows, A. . Robins, and A. G. Tallaferro.Zl Jach of these
worked for the advancement of education, and tried to inform

the people about the advantage of a public school aystem. During
this same session, the commissioners reported that the "oard

13 decidedly of the opinion that nothing but a system of district
schools will meet the wants of the peop].e",.22 This proved thut
they had been visuallzlng such 2 system and had given sorious
thought to the operation of such an organigation. Another man
who worked for the establishment of publie schools was Willieam ap
W, Jones, who became the first county superintendent of

20, Report of the School Commissloners, 1843
21, Heport of the Bchool Tommissioners, 1055
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Gloucester after the enactment of the school laws of 1870. The
fact thet the majority of the teachers who operated schools
before the Acts of 1870 belisved in the free public school
organization is shown by 8ll coming into the system except one,
that of Wr, Johu Tabbs The reason that he remainsd out was

that he was teaching more advanced classes than would be found
in the pudblic schools,



CHAPTER V

PUBLIC FREE SUPPORTED SCHOOLS
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CHAPTER V
PUBLIC PREE SUPPORTED SCHOOIS

The devslopment of the public school system in Virginia
wns 8 slow and gradual process, At firet, publie education,
which was supported and administersd by the state, was looked
upon a8 being intended for the psuper elass. This ldea pre-
wailed mostly during the gnte-bellum days; however, 1t atill
existed to some extent alfter thoe war, The planter or mristos
crat could not coneeive the idea of having his children educated
in the ssame school and under the same temcher with those of the
poor or working class. Since he had alwoys been able to provide
tutors for his children, he did not understend why a system of
public sducation, supported by taxing the pecple, should be
adopted. This did not show thet the aristocrat of Virginie was
opposed to education. He was & great bellever in education
and realiged its necessity, though not as mmuch from o technical
gide es from the scelal side, Owing to thelr sociasl custom, the
aristocrats believed that education should be provided iike the
ather necessities of life, and not be made a gift., Some of the
wealthy people, therefore, did not sanction public education,

In spite of all these obastacleas, the public school system was
‘made possible by the acts of the General Assembly and through



the untiring efforts of those who belleved in the system and
worked for lts cause.

At the time of mecesslon, Virginia had developed her
social end educational institutlons to such an extent that she
was looked upon as the soeclal and Intellectunl leeder of the South.
However, at the close of the War between the States, she found
that a1l these social and educational institutions had collapsed,
and that she was confronted with new probleus that ‘had been
eaugsed by the war, The state began to devise some Jmnm of re-
building these institutlions in order to make the 1nmbitanta
of the state good citlgensy thus we £ind that a system of publiec
education was plsnned} On July 6, 186§, the new constitution,

_ which contained the first provision for o complete gystem of
publie education in Viz‘ginia; was aﬁopted.z

| According to ‘the constitution, the General Asserbly

elected Williem H. Ruffner, March 2, 1870, as Superintendent of
Publie Instmction; Within less than & meonth, Dr, Ruffner sube
mitted to( the General Assembly a plan for inaugurating a system
of publie education. Ma plan, after several changes, was
passed by ths Asgerbly, and on July 11, 1870, was signed by the
Govemor;s 4

The first meeting of the Hoard of Educatic_m was held
July 29, 1870, at ﬁrhioh timé twelve county superinterdents were
appointed, Bsfoi‘a the fii‘téemth of lNoverber, morse than one
thousand schcol officers, meludihg superintendents, trustees,

%‘ !é:at\;o%n,sci Ji Iistory of Equeation in Virginle, p. 213
- reinin School He T Dbe 3-8
s, ViIrginis School Report, o7, p..é
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8%0,s, had been commissioned. The first duty of the newly apppint-
ed county superintendonts was to beke the census of the school
population in order to determine the mmber of schools and
teachers needed in the various dlstricts, Public school work
moved on with vigor. In every dlstrict in which a vote had been
talten, with the exeeptlon of one, the éueeta.on of laying a local
tax for'the support of education was carried by large majoritles.?

The firast public schools were opened about the middle
of November, 1870, By Janusry, 1871, about oneehalf of the
counties of the state had opened or were planning to cpen schools,
These schools were finsneed by the interest scerulng from the
Iitersry Fund, the snmual tax of not lsss than one nor more than
five mills on the dollsr, the eapitation tax, and the funds
derived from local taxetion in the counties and districts.

Dr, Ruffner ststed in bis report of 1871 that

7, .s0n the whole, though not entirely satis=

factory, the schools were falr, always equal

Tiously exteved in the same looadities, snd

better it may be added, than could have been

m:;egoﬁ:r :nsamg'gay to teachers of
During this same session, thore were 130,469 pupils enrolled in
the publice schools of Virginis.

! While the othsi- counties wers showing thelir interest

in the educatione} developmont, we £ind that in Gloucester, too,

much interest was being uvmeﬁ concerning the education of her

4» Virginia School Report, 1871. Xducational Journal
. anuﬂ; 70 = e ey
Be Virﬁ s&thOJ-v Rém‘b. ‘1..3-71. Pe &
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aﬂ.;iaens, thus we £ind that during the sesslon 1869-70, by
eemsus taken preparatory to the opening of the public free
schools, there were in Cloucester Counfy fifteen schools
taught by fifteen teachers. Ou the school rolls were 308
pupils with an average daily atiendance of 225. Tho aggpow
gate pay of these fifteen teachers was §3,500,00 per year,
Viith ons exception, all of these schools came into the publie
gchool system, The one exception was the Gloucester Academy,
taught by lr,. Jobn Tabb.,®

Ati the close of the first session, the Superinten~
dent of Publie Instruection requested each county superinten=-
dent to submit & report giving the prevalling opinion con-
cerning education in his particular coumtys To this request
¥y, 4lliam %, Wlatt, Superintendent of Cloucoster, respondeds:
"The property holders, on a lergs and moderate scale, are
opposed to Lt";7 This report proved that the old narrow
conception of education still prevalled among the wealthy
class in Gloucesterj howover, this should not have proved dis-
cowraging, because each subsequent weporit made by the county
superintendent was better and betbter.

For the year endling August, 1871, Gloucester re-
ported a total of nineteen white schools and six colored
scheols. In thess schools were employed twenty-one white and
four colored teachers, who taught an average of four and
sgven~tenths months. During this sossion, the averagc salary

pald these teachers was {28.86 per month, with an average en-

8. Vir%nia Sghool Report, 1885, "Fdueation in Cloucester
Ve id a4, %% 'ﬁo‘B‘er’c' He Franklin, Supt., 1835
7. Virginls School Report, 1871, p. 149
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rollment of 637 white and 309 colored puplls, meking a grand
total of 936 pupils enrolled in the public schools of Glou-
wétar County. The average dally attendence wos 399 for the
white, and 186 for the eolored pupils. The total cost for
sducational purposes in Glousester County for this session
wee $3,847.20, or ebout $3500,00 more then it cost to educate
leas than m—half this nurber of children during the previous
year. This represented an aversge tuition of seventy-seven
sents per month for all puplls enrolled, or $1.23 per month
grox- each pupil in average daily attendaxwon

Durling the second yesr of the p\xblic achool systam,
gths people in Gloucester were considerably more mtaresm
gand put forth a greater affort to make the new enterprise a
g suscess. At the close of thils session, Mr, Wiatt, the county
guperintendent, roported: "Public sentiment is more favore
gble %o ¢he public achool gystem. The mass of the people
appreciate its neeessity*.o When we compsre this report with
thet of the previcus year, wo wonder why the opinion of the
people changed so quickly. As I have seid, this was due to
the fact that the people in C«loucestex; already believed greatly
in sducation, which 1s proved by the number of private schools
and academiez that exlsted before the war, and that the only
thing they had to become reconciled to wes the system of tax

8, Vi ia School Report, 1871, p. 168
0. VISETar: Senool Hemort TEVE: by 25
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supported public schools,

At the close of thils gession of 1873, Mr, Wiatt
again reported; "The public school sysbtem is going forward
ataadily"-lo This was due to0 the fact that the people in
Gloucester, like other Virginiens, were of a very conservative
class, and were slow to yleld to changes that seemed to be of
a radlcal nature, They were slow to adopt new ideas, but
1f they once adopted them, they put forth svery effort to make
the changes s success. This was Lypieal of the public school
movement. The people adopted 1% graduallyi and by doing this,
they bullt on & solid Poundation,

The first decade of public edusation in Gloucester
County proved to be very auccpssful. The people who were
not enthusiastic over the system when 1t was first inaugurate
ed had become staunch supporters of the plan, and worked for
the cause that now seemed justifiable, During the seasion
ending 1in 1880, Williem ap W. Jones, who had now become county
superintendent, reported the following to the SBuperintendent
of Public Instruction:

"From my observation, crime has

diminiched, particularly among the

colored; and the colored people ssem

to have clearer ideas of what education

is, and a high appreciation and deaire

for education, I do not mean to say

that the whites have deprecilated in

this respect, but that the advagie is
more marked miong the colorsd,

20, Virgl sechool Report, 1873-74, pe 26
1, Vﬁ’s!%g XeESoY Merort. IEV000-81, pe T4



In 1880, there were twenty white schools and thirteen
colored schools in Gloucester. Thess schools taught an
average of six and sixty-seven one-hundredths monthse In
these achools, twenty~four white and nine co}.cwéd ieachers
were employed, There were 816 white children enrolled, with
an average dally attendance of 4133 and 985 colored children,
with an aversge dally attendance of five mmdred and twenty=
seven, The total enrollment for this sessfon was 1,811, with
total average daily attendances of 940, or & 1little over fifty
poer cent. For educating these children, Gloucester receiwved
$3,830,00 from the state funds, $1,852,87 from the county
funds, $2,885.18 from the district funds, and $7,50 from tuitione
al charges, making a total of $9,575,55 avellable for education
in Gloucester »Geunty.m Tnis sum represented sbout three times
the amount which wes appropriated in the year 1870, The cost
of tuition per month per pupil enrolled was forty-six cents,
while the whole cost of educating puplls wes fifty-one cents
per month. During this same seasilon, Gloucester had one graded
elementary school, in which there were enrolled one handred and
sight pupils, with an average daily attendance of thirty-nine.
This school was situated in the lower part of Gloucester, knowm
as Guinem Neck, Thess pupils weore taught by two teachers, the
scﬁool operating a term of seven months.

In 1890, Gloucester County still reported one graded
elémentary school, that in Guinea Neck, During this same

12, Ibid,, pe 40
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session, the county reported éighb groded colored aschools.
were twenty-five white schools end twenty seven colored schools
operating in the county during this session. In these schools
were enrolled nine hundred and ninety-seven whibte and one thousand
four Immdred and eighty~four solored puplls. Twenty-five white
teachers snd twenty~seven colorsd tsechers were employed to
teach these pupila. The salaries of these teachers varied,

but they were all very low. 7The white male teachers received
$25.00 per month iIn Petsworth District, $27.00 per month in
Ware District, end $29.28 per menth in Abingdon District.

The white female teachers in Potaworth received {24.16 per
wmonths in Ware they received $25.80 per month; and in Abingdon
they roceived {29.29 per month, The colored male teachers re-
eoived $22.50 In Petasworthi {23.62 in Were; asnd $20.50 in
Abingdon District. The colored female tsachers reseived $28.00
in Petsworth; $21.22 in Wave; an? $25.00 in Abingdon, per month.l?
These figures indicate that there was very little diﬁ'ereme;in
the salaries of the colored teachers and those of the white
teachers, The averasge length of the school term in Glouceater
for this session was five and seven-tenths months.® TFor operat-
ing these achools, Gloucester received $6,758,77 from the

atate, $1,441.8% from the county tax, $2,103.79 from the

is. vie Schiool Report, 1860, pe 18

4. 4 Bchiool Fepor 'E"I ‘.\EQD': Pe 55

8. e Sohobls opérated six months in Petsworth, 5.86
months in Ware, 5.5 monthe in Abingdon; end the colored
schoola operated six months in Petsworth, six months in
Ware, and 6.5 months In Abingdon Dlstricis.
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distriet tax, and $9,00 from other sources, meking a grend
totel of $10,313.39 appropriated for schoolssl® The cost of
fuition per month For each white chlld enrolled was sixztye
gix oontej and for each colored child mnrolled, forty-~five
sentzs Tuitlion for sach whits child in s.vaz:age daily atten~
dance was $1.17, while that for the colored children was
geventy-four cents per month. During this session, Nr. Y. Fa
Hogge, who hed hecome superintendent, reported that educa-
Hion would bscome more efficlent

"1st, By judicious expenditure of

more money in inersased salaries of

teachers, 24, A necessary supply of

improved school apparatus and furnie

ture. Bdisn. better supervision of

schools”,

This report showed Lhat the superintendsnt was looking fer into
the future snd was hoping %o plan a program that would reach
over & periocd of many years.

In 1600, there were thiriy~three white sch;mla and
twenty-seven colored schacls in Gloucesbter. <in these schools
wers enrolled 1,344 white pupils and 1,598 colomed pupileel?
the average daily atbendance was 739 for the white pupils, and
926 for the coloreé ones, For educationsl purposes there was
appropriated §$7,190.73 from the state, 1,580.61 from the county
tax, $2,149.81 from the districi tax, and {46.75 from other
sources, making a total of $11,076.88,

15, Virginia School Report, 1890, p. 26
16 a3y Pe Y

17‘ m:‘, pp. m"m
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After thirty years of the pubne‘sohool syaten, the
people In Glauco;m.hnd became thoroughly convinced that it
was a good plan.‘ The coum;y wes educating a far greabter numbor
of children now than were being educaied before 1870. The
organization weas better, as shown by the numerous documents by
which the eounty was reporting 1ts transactions to the State
Board of Education. During this period, there were times of
trials and tribuletions, times when 1t seemed es if the whole
enterprise was going to be a fallure; but like other gmt
uwndertakings, it proved to bs successfuls Those in charge of
the schools realized that there were many changes and modifica-
$ions to bLe made. One of these changes was the policy dealing
with one-room schools. Too meny of these were being organized.
The superintendent and school board were aware of the fact
that a few well organized consolidmted schools would produce
greater results than several unorganized one-room schools;
therefors, Vt:hey hoped to insugurate a scheme of consolidation,
which, unfortunstely, did not materialize until meny yesrs
later. While the superintendent and school trustees were try-
ing to install & system of consolidation, the people wers calling
for 2 system of high schools in which the boys and girls could
be prepared for college,

In ¥ey, 1905, the remarkable "Nay Campailgn® for betier
education began Men spoke in every section of the state, in-
eluding the most remote settlements; as woll as the towvns and
eities, Candidates of both major political partles advoeated
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_an adequate aystem of education for the state.  Editors dew
voted their colgﬁms to the great cause. One hundred of the
sblest speakers of the state delivered three hundred addresses
in ninety-four uountica.m _The enthusiassm of the people was
aroused, and the state b«agnn to make progress in education that
had herdly been dreamed of. Naturally, this campeign had e
great Influence on the pecple of Gloucester. They demanded
as never before a more effieient systen of elementary schools
én# a syatamj of high schools, buring this same year, vthe State
Board of Education helped ﬁh cause by dividing the statq into
five grand dlvlslions, each including about fifteen counties.
An inspector had eaoh of these grend dlvisions In charge.

In 1908, the General Assembly passed the Williems
Toan Fund b111}° wnich provided for lending the Literary Fund
money of the s&te to dia;riet school boards at the rate of
four per cent interest. This money was t0 dbe paid back in ten
sanmual instaliments. These loans were to be made on buildings

‘whose plans were to bs approved by the Depertment of Publie
i&stzuntien; Gloucester was one of the first counties to take
adventage of this Act, by borrowing the sum of $3,000.00 for
the Botetourt High School building, As late as 1908, thers
wers many one-room ungraded elementary schools in Virginia.
The people who were interested in insugurating an organized

18, Heatwole, C. J. Cite, DPe 314
19, Aots of fhe AsserBis, T3
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iyam of sducation mensged o have the Genersl issembly pass
the Strode 5111,%0 wnieh, n adfition to seversl other school
measures, created s subsidy fund of $25,000.00 for the enw
‘sowragement of elementary graded schocls. This fund was to
be pro-rated to the counities that established greded schools
ﬁ: place of the ungraded ones.

- During the sesslon 191011, there were in Gloucester
forty-nine shite schools having sn aversge daily attendance
- of 904, and thirty-two ecolored schools having an average datly
atma of 872, In these schools were employed ro_rty-gxinb
white teachers and thirtyetvo colorsd teschers, meking a teschw
ing foren of sevenitywone employed in the Gloucester County school
mm. For operating these schoole, Gloucester received
$10,368.49 from the state; $5,295,390 from the county taxg $7,00.15
from the district taxs snd §199.42 from all other sources, mak-
ing a grand total of $22,883,45 availeble for educational pur=
poses,®X 15 appropriation doubled that of 1900,

During the session 1920«21, the value of school
equipment in Gloucester County wae $54,550,00, During this
game sessfon, the white schools in the county operated s term
of 158 days, and the colored ones operated & term of 138 days,
making an average term of 146 days for the county, Gloucester
reteived §04,855.14 from the state; $12,180,70 from the county
tax; $14,711.56 from the dlstrict tax; and §5,202,25 from all
other sources. This made & grand total of $56,989,00 availeble

20,

bid,
21, ViFeinie School Report, 1909-10; 1910-11, p. 355
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for school purposes, s sum prapfesenting two and one-half times
as mpmk 85 was avallshle in 1930 Tor the same purpose. At

this $ime, there weps sxréllef in the Gloucestyd public schools,
1,441 white children and 1,585 solored children,?®

Turing the yger 1921, there were ia Gloueester County
thirtesn one-room and ten twowroom Sshoolse®> The school
officials of the county ked thought of and had hoped to mmke
seme plaps for sonsolidating these, but as yet nothing had
been dones Kany plans were made, and by the year 1928 cone
solidetion hed resulted in the oloming of twenty school-rooms,
Dundng $his period, Glousester afficials not only carried
out thelr plghs of consolidation, but elso inaugurated a
system of ghysicsl and heglth sducation which was under the
amemo:mwms ofanhomh.

In 198627, the per sapits cost of instruction in
the white schools was $30.25, and in the colored schools 1t
mpe $8,21. The average anmual salary for the white teachers
wes §780,00, and for the solored tesohers 1t was §$324.00,
making the aversge salary of all teachers $533.00,°% 1m
this division were smployed ninetyeseven teachers, who taught
in the twenty-seven sshools that were operatinge

yey

Beport, Glousester
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For the sessfon 1930-51, Gloucester County received
$49,557,31 from the state; $42,000,00 from the county fundss
$2,674.22 from other sources; and $5,770.82 from loans and
bonds, making s total of $100,002.35 available for school
parposess®™ m the comnty white schools were enrclled,1,413
pupils, and in the negro schools wers enrolled 1,056 puplls,
making & grand total of 2,478 pupils enrolled. The average
@iy sttendance was 1,884 for the whites, snd 866 for the
colored, making s grand total of 2,089 in average daily
attentance.®® e aversge length of the school term was 176
days far the white schools snd 161 for the Negro schools,
making sn average term of 170 days for the county, The average
salary of the elementary teschers was $654.00 for the whites,
and §%46,00 for ths colored, making en average salary of
§508,00 for the comaty. The per eapita cost of instmuction
was §28,38. At the close of this sesslon, Glousester had
£ifteen: school bulldings for the white children and seventesn
for the colored, These schools wers in fair condition, Each
was equipped with patent desks. The valus of the sehool
property had now gromn $o $198,850.00. ’

The development of the secondary system of educetion
in Gloucester is typlesl of the pﬂm followed in other
sﬁmtias of Eastern Virginia. During the sesslon 1902-03
% were forty-~five white pupllis in Gloucester County study-~

25, Anuusl Regart of the Superintendent of Publis Instruc-
on P
26, Io¥s,Pe 150
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ing the mm&r vranches.?? These higher branches were given
In connection with the elementary school classes. In 190405
there were rowr graded. schools - Hayes Store, Achilbes, Belrol,
and Nowington « im Gloucester doing some form of high echool
work,®2 At thie time, the Glousester Academy, = private ine
stitution omed by Mr. John Tebb, was preparing puplls for
college, As late as 1905, Gloucester did mot have & firstw
grade publie high school, but yet 1t was not the only county
in Tidewater that felt thia embarrassment, for we find that
at this time not a single county in the eireult bardering on
the REappshannook River had such a high school .29 During
the session 1905-06, there wers seventy-seven pupils studying
the higher branches., ILike 1902035, those ma given in conmecw
tion with the elementary gradsd school.

Gloutester reported in 190607 ftwo "thirdwgzrade®
bigh schools, each of these dolng two years of high scheol
worke One of these was in Abingdon District, with an enrolle
ment of sixteen pupilsj and the other was In Ware Distriet,
with an oni-ellmnt of éigh‘bﬁm pupila, For the operation of
these schools, the county received $600,00 from the state high
school fund.3® In 1907~08, these two schools had secondegrade
ratings thak is, they offered three yeasrs of high school work.

1 Report, 1902+03, De 275
' '%m' *

H bt L7 el
3 '06; De 368
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In 1908.09, gloucester reported two firstegrade high schools,
#ach one offepring a foursyear high school course, One of these
was in Abingdon Distelet, and the other was in Wars District.
he county received $700,00 fram the state high school fund
for the purpose of operating these schools, ¥These two schools
together had sn enrollment of forty pupﬂ.a.sl @loucenter could
now boest of having two high schoolas one in the upper end
and the other in the lower end of the county. The wishes of
the people had been realized, and now the object wes to make
these more efficlent,

In 1908, Botetowurt High School building was con=
structed et a cost of J7,000,00, OFf this amount, $3,000.00
was borroved from the Litersry Pundj $3,000.00 was paid from
the loeal school funds and $1,000400 was derived from local
eontributions,> These local contributions showed the sacrifice
that the people would make for education. During the session
1909+10, Gloucester reported an enrollment of fiftyeseven
pupils in the two hiph schools, For operating these schools, the
county received $800.00 from thé state high school funds In
1910=11, Gloucester reported thres high schools doing four years
of high school work. Two of these were in Abingdon District,
and one was in Ware Distriet, During this sesalon, five other

Sle Ibid., 1907<08, 1908-09, p. 428
s B8 20 .
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achools in Gloutester ware offering one year of high school
worke. In the thres first-grade high schools, thers were ene
rolled elghty-sight pupils, while there wore only twenty en-
rpued in the five schools offering one yesr of high schoel
worke It was duwring this sesslion that the Aehllles High
School building was sconstructed, at a cost of ¥1,000400. OF
this emount, §500.00 was derived from public contributlons,
and $500.00 was appropriated by the locel school boerd.SS
N By 1918#13, the enrcliment in these threo high sehoola
bhad reached elightywseven, In addition %o the three high schools,
Gloucester reported having two schools in Petsworth District
and two in Vare District 691;15 one yesr of high scheol worke
In these four one~year high sehools wers emrolled thirteen
puplis.5® Duping the session 101314, the eurollment of the
three first«grade high achools was one Inmdred and twenty-fives
Ho report wes made of sehools offering one yeer of high achool
work, dut Petsworth District reported one thirdwgrade high
school doing two years of high school work, In this school were
envolled twelve puplls,SS

In 1918, the State Department of Education set up
certain requirementsz for a standard fourwyser high scheoel. A

53, Ibid., 1909=10, 19310~11, ps 47
e .y 1912613, ps 47
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fow of these requirements wers t&t the high school term should
be nine months, the term of the elementary grades taught in
connection with the high schaool should be nine months, at
loast three teachers should be amployed in the high school
department, and sixteen unlits should be reguired for graduation.
This action by the State Department of Edueation was & great step
toward ilmproving the high sechool eonditions In the state, During
the sesslon 192021, Botetourt wes a fully accredited high achool,
while Achilles and Hayes Store were conditionally n-ccmuad..
In these three schools were enrolled 142 high school pupilsi® The
average monthly salary of the high schaol teachersa, including the
prineipal, was §100.56 in Achilles, $108.63 in Botetourt, and
$110,00 in Hayes Store. In 1921, a new bullding was constructed
for Achilles High School, This was an eighteroom structuve,
modern in svery respect, Including steam heat end electyric lights.
This bullding cost $22,500,00, In 1922, the Kenney Bullding of
the Botetourt High School was dedicated. This bullding cone
tained eight rooms, auditorium, library, office, and basement
waich was used for the griculture departments. The bullding
was completed at a cost of §33,000.00.

In 1923, a commlittoe from the State Department of
Bdueation made a study of .the school fseilities in Abingdon
Distriet for the purpoze of deciding upon a sultable loecatlion
for a high gehool; The committee recormended that the Achilles

86, Annual Report of the Public High Schools of Virginis
\d m-ﬁ—-—-—-—_& —— g
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High Schoo) be continumed, that the high school department ab
Hayss Store be discontinued, end that the pupils be transe
ferved to Achilies or Botetowrt. As a result of this gindy,
Hayes Store Behool terminated its high school department at

the close of the session 1922835, Ia 1984, another unit was
erevted at Achilles High School, und in mﬁ a third unlt was
completed,®” Gloucester now hed two wellwequipped high schools
doling ecreditedble wark. The high school curriculum of the sounty .
was broadened In 1982, vhen agriculture and domestic scienne was
Installed in the high schools. In 1928, the eurriculim was still
broadened by adding commersial work in each high school, During
the session 192930, the Gloucester Training School for cclored
puplls wae sccredited by the Stete Department of Educatione In
4ats school ‘m erwoliled ninetywelght pupils, The asshool -
offered courses in Yecational egriculture and home economics.
Thore were two hundred sixbyefour puplls in the two high schools,
and elghtywseven in the ecloved treining mhaax. The Average
ammesl salary of the high school teachers, Including the ppinciw
pal, was $134.76 in Achilles, $114.59 In Botetourt, and $86.66

in the colored training school,™®

57« Comba, M. La, 81te, DDe 24-28
38, Repopt g e Superintendent of Pubiic Instruction,
ke Pe
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ksahom in Chart I, the percentage of white school
population sttending echool during the session of 1870 exceed=
ed the percentage of nogroes stiending by over £ifty per cent;
and from 1880 through 1630, the percentsge of whites attending
school wss a gradual imﬁue over the Negroes attendinge
This chart aim shows that there hes been a gradual incrssse
in the white school population through 1920, when a decrease
is noteds The Negro school populstion remched 1ts highest
momber in 1900, and then graduslly decressed through the yemr 1930,

S Population N¥umber of Pupila
{Total in Coe) enrolled in School
Yeap White TWegro Total _ White Negro Total
18%0 4782 5429 102)1 &27 309 936
1880 5342 65684 11876 816 285 1811
1890 5457 8216 11655 997 1484 2481
1900 6284 6608 1288 1544  1ue8 2872
1810 8570 5907 12477 1352 1427 2779

1920 6313 5681 11894 1461 1583 2984
1850 6652 4387 11039 1413 10856 2469
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According to Chart II, the total murber of puplls
attending school gradually inereased until 1900, From 1900
0 1910, the nunber of pupila enrolled deorsased; howeyer,
fwrom 1910 te 1920, encther Increasse was shown. Due to the
mwnw, the total enrollment showed g marked
deerense from 1920 to 1930,

Chart III shows that there was a continusl increase
i1 the mmber of schools from 1870 through 1930. From 1910
threugh 1920, over Lifty gew cont of these schools wers closed,
and from 1920 to 1930 eonsolidetion still continued.

Graph I shows that the length of the mehool berm ine
creased from 1870 to 1880, when 1t began to decresse. The de=
erease continued untll 1900, when the length of the school
tarm began to incresse again, This increase continued through
1930,

Graph II pletures to us the mppropristions for school
purposes in Gloucester Countys. The appropristions graduslly
fnereased until 1900, when they bsgan to double every ten years,
From this greph we see slso that the state and the local
appropriations have been about egqual,
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CHART I

T ———

School Population  Number of Pupils Percentage of School

Yeer {5-21 years) snrolled in School PFPopulation enrolled
¥White Wegro Total white Negyo Total White HNegro Total
1870 1648 18656 3516 62T 309 936 38 26,6

1900 2088 2862 490 1544 1s2e 26872 60
1910 1506 2140 5946 1382 id87 27T 75
1920 1851 1939 3770 1461 1528 2984 79,7 V8.2
1830 1948 1761  3W09u 1415 1056 2469 T2.5 60

18

; 4429 38

1890 2836 2762 4987 097 1484 2481 B) g B50+5
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GHAPTER VX
SUMMARY

The battle for making education a demoeratic Instiiue
$ion begen es early as 1779, when Thomas Jeffersen introduced
bis L1l for the "Nore General Diffusion of Knowledge®, and eon—
tinuwed untlil 1570. The people on the whole belleved in a system
of educatlon, snd adopted it graduslly. In 1869, the peopls
adopted the system of public edusaiion becsuse during the pre=
vious year they had been prepared for its Inauguration. The
iden wans pot new to themy It wes not e scheme hatched over night,
but & system that Virginis was graduslly working toward all the
time, Like the wsjority of Virginfans, the psople in (loucester
belloved in educetion. They put forth every effort to have their
ehildren educated, When the country was sparsely settled, the
planters hired their own private tutors and hed them educate their
ebildrens. As the county becams more thickly populated, private
schools were estsblished, snd many of the planters sent thelr
children to these in apder for them to recelive thelr tralning.
In & short time, we find that scademlies began to be sstablished
in the county, and ez many as twe or three teachers were employed
in each of these. The eurriculs usually consisted of Latin, Greek,
Freach, litsraturs, and methematics, thus giving the student &



classieal educatiohs
While the Gloucester planter was looking out for the
~edusation of his own children, the children of the indigents
were being cared for also. The churches on several occasions
srranged to have these children bound out, in order that they
:ﬂ@thmatndnwlomﬁoread‘ In addition to the church,
several mwen, smong them Mr. King and ¥r. Peesley, made bequests
for the purpose of educating the poor children of the county.
Anyone in Glousester who desired an educatlon could get it by
meking his wants knowne
After the pagsage of the Public School Acts of 1870,
Glmeosmﬁopmmaysm,mmofmwomm
somewhat skeptical of 1%. They were not skeptical of the plan
because they were opposed to education, but because they were
opposed to the system belng used, They bellsved that education
shouid be acquired 1lke other neceasitles of life; that 1s, pald
for if you were sble to 4o BO. As early ss the second year after
the adoption of this plan, the majority of the peeple realized
that 1t was for a good purpose, end therefore braem reconciled
to its This showed that they were open-minded and resdy to accept
changes that were good and just. A¢ the begimming of the publie
sshool aystem, the elementary schools In general were stressed;
however, about 1890, the county began to emphasize the elementary
graded schools In 1908, the county reporbed its first high
school,. Since that time, efficlency has been atressed, snd today
Gloucester has a creditable system of education,
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